
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
           

 
 

AGENDA  
 WATERFORD PLANNING COMMISSION - REGULAR MEETING 

WATERFORD COMMUNITY CENTER, CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
  101 “E” STREET, WATERFORD, CA 

               
               
               
  

CALL TO ORDER:  Chairman Esther  
 FLAG SALUTE:  Chairman Esther 
 ROLL CALL: 
     Chairman:   Esther 
     Vice Chair:   Powell 
     Commission Members: Montgomery, Ayers 
 ADOPTION OF AGENDA: 
  Motion waiving reading of all ordinances and resolutions on the agenda except by title, unless reading of an  
  Ordinance or Resolution is requested by the Chairman or Commission Member. 
 

 ADOPTION OF CONSENT CALENDAR:  
All Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine by the Commission and will be adopted by one action of the 
Commission unless any Commission Member desires to discuss any item or items separately.  In that event, the Chairman will 
remove that item from the Consent Calendar and action will be considered separately. 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION:  
Declaration by Planning Commission members who may have a direct Conflict of Interest on any scheduled agenda item to be 
considered. 

 
 

1.  
 
  1a: PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES: April 22, 2014 
  1b: PLANNING PROJECT LOG 
  1c: BUILDING PERMITS REPORT: APRIL 2014 
  1d: BUSINESS LICENSE REPORT: APRIL 2014 
     

 
2.  
 
    

    
3. 

 
At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not appearing on the agenda.  Comments should be limited to a maximum of 5 
minutes.  For items appearing on the agenda, the public will be invited to make comments at the time the item comes up for Commission 
consideration.  At all times please come up to the podium and use the microphone. 

 
 

 

4. 
  

Members of the public may comment when the item is opened for public hearing.   

 
4a. Resolution No. 2014-09: Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2014-02 (Outdoor Dining Ordinance) and 

Notice of CEQA Exemption in Accordance with Section 15305 of the CEQA Guidelines 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – May 27, 2014- 6:30 PM 

PRESENTATIONS             
             

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE 

CONSENT CALENDAR  
 

 

 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 



  

STAFF / COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
   

5.  
   
 

        
6.  
 

 
7. 

 
 

 

7a.  Stanislaus County General Plan Update and Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Notice of 
Preparation 

  
 
 

8. 
  

8a: City Staff Comments     (Information Only – No Action)  
8b: Planning Commission Comments   (Information Only – No Action)  

     
    
 

 

 

 
  

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

ADJOURNMENT 

CORRESPONDENCE / INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 



  

NOTICE 
 
 
 
Copies of the staff reports or other written documentation relating to each item of business referred to on the agenda are 
on file in the office of the City Clerk.  Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the planning Commission 
regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection at the front counter at City Hall located at 
101 E Street, Waterford, CA during normal business hours.  Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda 
item may call the City Clerk to make inquiry regarding the nature of the item described on the agenda. 
 
At their request, members of the audience may address the Planning Commission on any item during Commission’s 
consideration of that item.  The public also has the opportunity to speak on any matter of public interest within Planning 
Commission’s jurisdiction, including items on the Planning Commission’s Agenda, except for those items specially 
scheduled as public hearings.  The public has an opportunity to speak on such items during the public hearing. 
 
It is the policy of the Planning Commission that we will not act on any matter not appearing on the posted agenda.  The 
item may be discussed.  The purpose of the discussion is to permit a member of the public to raise an issue or problem 
with the Planning Commission or to permit the Planning Commission to ask questions for clarification of the issue or 
problem, provide information to the public, provide direction of the City Staff, or schedule the matter for a future meeting.  
Please hold all comments to five (5) minutes. 
 
 
 
               
  
 
General Information:  The Waterford Planning Commission meets on the 4

th 
Tuesday of each month   

    at 6:30PM., unless otherwise noticed. 
 
 
Commission Agenda’s:  Copies of Planning Commission Agenda and agenda related writings or   
     documents will be made available for public inspection at the front counter at City 
     Hall located at 101 “E” Street, Waterford, CA. 72 hours prior to the meeting, or at  
     the time of the scheduled meeting.    
 
 
 
 
 

DATE & TIME OF POSTING 
 
 

Commission Meeting Date:    May 27, 2014 
 
Post Date:   05/23/14    Time: at or before 5:00PM 
 
Verified by:  C.Jauregui    Title: Deputy City Clerk 



  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
           

 
 

MINUTES 
 WATERFORD PLANNING COMMISSION - REGULAR MEETING 

WATERFORD COMMUNITY CENTER, CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
  101 “E” STREET, WATERFORD, CA 

               
               
               
  

CALL TO ORDER:  Chairman Esther  
 FLAG SALUTE:  Chairman Esther 

ROLL CALL:  
Commission Chair -  Esther: Present 
Commission Member -  Montgomery: Present 
Commission Member -  Powell: Present 
Commission Member -  Ayers: Present 
Commission Member -  Cathcart: Present 
Alt. Commissioner -  Gordon: Present 
 

 
 
 ADOPTION OF AGENDA: 
  Motion waiving reading of all ordinances and resolutions on the agenda except by title, unless reading of an  
  Ordinance or Resolution is requested by the Chairman or Commission Member. 
 

Commission Member -  Ayers: Motion 
Commission Member -  Cathcart: 2nd 
Commission Chair -  Esther: Approve 
Commission Member -  Montgomery: Approve 
Commission Member -  Powell: Approve 
Commission Member -  Ayers: Approve 
Commission Member -  Cathcart: Approve 
Alt. Commissioner -  Gordon: N\A 
 

 
 

 ADOPTION OF CONSENT CALENDAR:  
All Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine by the Commission and will be adopted by one action of the 
Commission unless any Commission Member desires to discuss any item or items separately.  In that event, the Chairman will 
remove that item from the Consent Calendar and action will be considered separately. 
 

 
Commission Member -  Ayers: Motion 
Commission Member -  Powell: 2nd 
Commission Chair -  Esther: Approve 
Commission Member -  Montgomery: Approve 
Commission Member -  Powell: Approve 
Commission Member -  Ayers: Approve 
Commission Member -  Cathcart: Approve 
Alt. Commissioner -  Gordon: N\A 
 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – April 22, 2014- 6:30 PM 

avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:00:45
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:00:45
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:00:45
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:00:45
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:00:45
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:00:45
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:01:13
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:01:13
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:01:13
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:01:13
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:01:13
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:01:13
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:01:13
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:01:13
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:03:29
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:03:29
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:03:29
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:03:29
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:03:29
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:03:29
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:03:29
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:03:29


  

 

STAFF / COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION:  

Declaration by Planning Commission members who may have a direct Conflict of Interest on any scheduled agenda item to be 
considered. 

 
 

1.  
 
  1a: PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES: September 24, 2013, February 25, 2014 
  1b: PLANNING PROJECT LOG 
  1c: BUILDING PERMITS REPORT: MARCH 2014 
  1d: BUSINESS LICENSE REPORT: MARCH 2014 
  1e. ADMINISTRATIVE USE PERMIT 2014-01 V-TREE, INC. 
   

 
2.  
 
    

    
3. 

 
At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not appearing on the agenda.  Comments should be limited to a maximum of 5 
minutes.  For items appearing on the agenda, the public will be invited to make comments at the time the item comes up for Commission 
consideration.  At all times please come up to the podium and use the microphone. 

 
 

 

4. 
  

Members of the public may comment when the item is opened for public hearing.   

 
 

 
 

   

5.  
   
 

        
6.  
 

 
7. 

 
 

 

7a.  Stanislaus County Planning Commissioners’ Workshop 
7b.  City Spheres of Influence Report, dated March 26, 2014, prepared by Stanislaus LAFCO  
 
 

8. 
  

8a: City Staff Comments     (Information Only – No Action)  
8b: Planning Commission Comments   (Information Only – No Action)  

     
    
 

 
Adjourn:6:43 PM 

 
Motion by Commissioner Powell, seconded by Commissioner Cathcart to adjourn the Planning 
Commission meeting at 6:43 PM 

 

    

PRESENTATIONS             
             

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE 

CONSENT CALENDAR  
 

 

 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

ADJOURNMENT 

CORRESPONDENCE / INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 



  

 

Commission Member -  Powell: Motion 
Commission Member -  Cathcart: 2nd 
Commission Chair -  Esther: Approve 
Commission Member -  Montgomery: Approve 
Commission Member -  Powell: Approve 
Commission Member -  Ayers: Approve 
Commission Member -  Cathcart: Approve 
Alt. Commissioner -  Gordon: N\A 
 

 

Passed and Approved by the Waterford Planning Commission at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission held on 
the _____ day of _________________, 2014 by the following vote: 
 
 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 

 

ATTEST: 
 
  

 Carla Jauregui, Planning Secretary   Chris Esther, Chairman          
     

 
 
 

avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:13:01
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:13:01
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:13:01
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:13:01
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:13:01
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:13:01
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:13:01
avca:V:/AVCA%20Recordings/2014-04-22/PLANNING%20COMMISSION_2014-04-22_06-30-21%20PM@00:13:01


Planning Project Report

Project Name
Date 

submitted

Project 

Number Project Type APN #

Applicant 

Name NotesProject Location

CARRIAGE SQUARE ESTATES 12/14/2006 TSM 2006-01 TSM 2006-01 080-033-003 BILL HOUCK / RED CAT 

PROPERTIES

waiting on final map- Applicant 

interested in reviving map Mar 2013

PC Meeting Date: 3/27/2007

PC Resolution Number: 2007-02

City Council Meeting Date: 4/19/2007

CC Resolution Number: 2007-40

59

ID DATE DESCRIPTION PAYOR/PAYEE AMOUNT

59

 

Project Total

Winery Villas 1/22/2014 GPA 2014-01 

Rezone 2014-01

GPA/Rezone 134-005-006 HSE Investments LLC320 G Street

PC Meeting Date:

PC Resolution Number:

City Council Meeting Date:

CC Resolution Number:

84

ID DATE DESCRIPTION PAYOR/PAYEE AMOUNT

84

 

Project Total

Thursday, May 22, 2014 Page 1 of 1



City of Waterford - Building Permits Issued for APRIL 2014

NEAL GODA

232 N. REINWAY

WATERFOR, CA 95386

SOLAR CITY

2001 ARCH AIRPORT ROAD #300

STOCKTON, CA

888104

Owner Info Contractor Info

License #

3794 232 N. REINWAY

ROOF MOUNTED SOLAR

Work Address:

Work Performed:
$17,680.00Project Value:

$398.00Total Fees:

Permit # Paid: 4/2/2014

CHRIS HENNE

13218 EL POMAR

WATERFORD, CA 95386

CALCO, INC

3107 MC DONALD AVE

MODESTO, CA 95358

902242

Owner Info Contractor Info

License #

3795 13218 EL POMAR AVE

PRE ENGINEERED STEEL BARN

Work Address:

Work Performed:
$40,000.00Project Value:

$795.75Total Fees:

Permit # Paid: 4/2/2014

RAMIRO RUBIO

412 C STREET

WATERFORD, CA 95386

SELF

Owner Info Contractor Info

License #

3796 412 C STREET

DRY ROT REPAIR AND WINDOW REPLACEMENT

Work Address:

Work Performed:
$5,000.00Project Value:

$395.00Total Fees:

Permit # Paid: 4/11/2014

SCAR Remodeling

6736 Pomorama Dr.

Riverbank, CA 95367

Roque Saldivar

6736 Pomorama Dr.

Riverbank, CA 95367

Owner Info Contractor Info

License #

3798 13101 Bentley

Conversion of garage back to garage.Sheetrock,plumbing. 

Electrical upgrade re/store

Work Address:

Work Performed:
$1,000.00Project Value:

$395.00Total Fees:

Permit # Paid: 4/21/2014

Thursday, May 08, 2014 Page 1 of 2



City of Waterford - Building Permits Issued for APRIL 2014

SERGIO RAYAS

313 SAWMILL AVE.

WATERFORD, CA 95386

SELF

Owner Info Contractor Info

License #

3799 313 SAWMILL AVE.

STUCCO FRONT OF HOUSE

Work Address:

Work Performed:
$3,000.00Project Value:

$198.00Total Fees:

Permit # Paid: 4/22/2014

City of Waterford

Waterford, CA 95386

Chevron Energy Solutions

345 California Street 18th Fl

San Francisco, CA 94104

813797

Owner Info Contractor Info

License #

3803 101 E Street

Install 17.7kW Solar Photovoltaic roof system ontop of City Hall 

bldg. The structure will be 1 ft above the roof with 5 degrees pitch.

Work Address:

Work Performed:
$84,075.00Project Value:

$0.00Total Fees:

Permit # Paid: 4/25/2014

City of Waterford

101 E Street

Waterford, CA 95386

Chevron Energy Solutions

345 California St. 18th Fl.

San Francisco, CA 94101

813797

Owner Info Contractor Info

License #

3805 540 C Street

install 29.5kw solar photovotaic canopy system next to the 

community center building.  12' in height with 5 degree pitch.

Work Address:

Work Performed:
$140,125.00Project Value:

$0.00Total Fees:

Permit # Paid: 4/25/2014

Totals

Misc Permits 4

0New Dwelling

$0.00

$1,975.00

$0.00

$48.00

$148.75

$0.00

$10.00

$0.00

Building Permit Fee:

Plumbing Price Fee:

Electrical Fee:

Plan Check Fee:

Sewer Fee:

SMIP Fee:

Park Land :

Admin Fee:

County Impact

City Impact $0.00

$0.00

$290,880.00

Multiples: 0

Commercial: 0

Comm Multiples: 0

CBSC: $7.00

Thursday, May 08, 2014 Page 2 of 2



BUSINESS LICENSE REPORT - April 2014

BUSINESS NAME TYPE OF 

BUSINESS

NO LONGER IN 

BUSINESS

LOCATION ADDRESS LOCATION 

CITY

FEE AMT PAID 

DATE

BUSINESS 

CATEGORY

EXCELSIOR CONSTRUCTION INC. WELDING/CONSTRU
CTION

2601 N. BUSINESS PARK AVE. FRESNO $51.00 4/15/2014CONSTRUCTION/C
ONTRACTOR/MAN
UFACTURING

MARYBELLA'S BEAUTY SALON HAIR CUTS, PERMS, 
COLORS, WAXING

220 E STREET WATERFORD $38.50 4/23/2014PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICE/MAINTE
NANCE"

NANCY ROMERO INSURANCE 
AGENCY

INSURANCE SALES 220 E STREET WATERFORD $38.50 4/15/2014MISC

RESTORATION RESOURCES BY 
FETTER

GENERAL 
CONSTRUCTION

507 GALAXY WAY MODESTO $38.50 4/29/2014CONSTRUCTION/C
ONTRACTOR/MAN
UFACTURING

THOMPSON'S MOBILE 
BOOKEEPING

MOBILE 
BOOKEEPING

460 TISDELL DR. WATERFORD $51.00 4/2/2014MISC

UNCLE JER'S COOKIES, INC. ITINERANT VENDOR-
EDUCATION 
SHOWS/FUNDRAISIN
G

9591 CASTLEBRIDGE CT. ELK GROVE $39.25 4/29/2014MISC

WELDTEC MFG WELDING 13199 HARBOR DR. WATERFORD $51.00 4/2/2014CONSTRUCTION/C
ONTRACTOR/MAN
UFACTURING

Thursday, May 08, 2014 Page 1 of 1



 

 

ITEM #: 4 
SECTION: a 

 
 
 
 
 

Planning Commission - Staff Report 
 

 

Meeting Date: May 27, 2013 

From:      Mark Niskanen, Planning Manager, mark@jbandersonplanning.com 

Prepared By:  Carla Jauregui, cjauregui@cityofwaterford.org 
  

Action Title: Zoning Ordinance Amendment 2014-02: Amendment to 17.40.290(F): Outdoor 

Eating Area Performance Standards 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 

At their regularly scheduled meeting of April 3, 2014, the City Council directed the City Manager and staff to amend 

Section 17.40.29(F) of the City’s Zoning Ordinance to allow and provide regulations for which alcoholic beverages are 

served in outdoor eating areas.  Based upon this direction, City staff has added language to amend this Section of the 

Zoning Ordinance.  The proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment has been shared with local businesses through the City’s 

Chamber of Commerce.   

 

In accordance with Section 17.79.020 of the City’s Municipal Code, a Public Notice for Zoning Ordinance Amendment 

No. 2014-01 was published in the Waterford News on May 14, 2014.  At the time of writing this Staff Report (May 19, 

2014), City staff has not received any comments. 

 

The proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment will modify Section 17.40.290(F) of the Waterford Municipal Code, adding 

language that will regulate the standards for which alcoholic beverages are served in outdoor eating areas.  Alcohol 

beverages are not allowed unless the following regulations are met: 

 

a) Outdoor eating areas must be duly licensed by the State Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control, and the City 

of Waterford requirements and restrictions for the service of alcoholic beverages in outdoor eating areas shall 

not be less than those required by the State Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control. 

b) The permittee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City, its officials, officers, agents and employees 

from any and all claims, causes of action, losses, injuries or damages arising directly or indirectly from the 

negligent acts, errors or omissions of the permit holder, its officers, agents, employees or anyone rendering 

services on its behalf. 

c) The outdoor eating area must be clearly and physically separated from pedestrian traffic, and exists shall be 

designated in the encroachment permit.  All barriers, railings, or fences placed around the eating area shall be in 

place during hours of operation to clearly define the area. 

d) The service of alcoholic beverages shall be restricted solely to on premise consumption by customers within the 

outdoor eating area.  The business operator shall post a written notice to customers that drinking or carrying an 

open container of alcohol is prohibited outside the outdoor earing area. 

e) Outdoor dining areas shall not be used primarily for alcoholic beverage consumption, and the opportunity to 

order food from the dining establishment’s menu shall be made available at all times when alcohol is served. 

f) Police Department approval is required for alcohol sales after midnight in outdoor eating areas. 

 



 

 

These requirements, along with the general regulations in 17.40.290(F) will ensure that outdoor eating areas 1) do not 

encroach on pedestrian or vehicular travel lanes as to cause a public hazard, 2) the serving of alcoholic beverages are 

regulated in a way that is understandable, enforceable, and defensible and 3) each proposed outdoor eating area will be 

required to gain the approval of the Public Works director through an encroachment permit will ensure that each outdoor 

eating area is safe and enjoyable. 

 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION / ANALYSIS:  

 

Staff is recommending that the Planning Commission recommend to the City Council adoption of the Zoning Ordinance 

Amendment 2014-02 by Resolution 2014-09. 

 

The City Council is scheduled to review and consider Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2014-01 at their regularly 

scheduled meeting of June 5, 2014.  In accordance with Section 17.79.020, Public Notice will be posted in the Waterford 

News on May 21, 2014. 

 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

 

The proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment will not have any fiscal impact.   

 
 

BACKGROUND:  

 

Categorical Exemption: The proposed project is categorically exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) per State CEQA Guidelines Section 15305 (Class 5 – Minor Alterations to Land Use Limitations).  

This exemption applies to projects involving minor alterations to land use limitations in areas with an average slope of 

less than 20%, which do not result in changes in land use or density.   

 

The project is exempt because it involves a minor amendment to the zoning code which would add regulations for outdoor 

dining and the serving of alcohol.  The amendment does not change the zoning designation of any individual property and 

does not affect existing land use or density.  It also does not propose or require any specific development project.  Any 

specific development project undertaken in the future would be required to comply with CEQA at that time, i.e. 

permanent outdoor dining which would expand the footprint of the established bona fide service establishment.  The 

proposed activity reasonably falls within the Class 5 exemption category and does not trigger any of the exceptions to 

exemptions listed in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2.   

 
 

ATTACHMENTS: (List all attachments.) 

 Public Notice 

 Resolution No. 2014-09 

 





 

 

RESOLUTION No. 2014-09 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE WATERFORD CITY PLANNING 

COMMISSION RECOMMEND THE ADOPTION OF ZONING 

ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 2014-02, AMENDING SECTION 

17.40.290: OUTDOOR EATING AREA PEFORMANCE 

STANDARDS 

 

WHEREAS, City Staff were directed by City Council at a regular meeting held on April 3, 2014 

following discussions with business owners to amend the aforementioned Section of the 

Waterford Municipal Code for the purpose to include regulations regarding the serving of 

alcohol within outdoor eating areas; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment will regulate and add restrictions to 

the serving of alcohol beverages contained within outdoor eating areas; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment will provide a process for which 

alcohol beverages may be served in outdoor eating areas, including but not limited to, 

encroachment permit, State law requirements and denial process; and, 

 

WHEREAS, this action is categorically exempt from CEQA per State CEQA Guidelines Section 

15305, Class 5 – Minor Alterations to Land Use Limitations; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Government Code section 65855 requires that the City Council receive input 

and a recommendation from the Planning Commission on a Zoning Amendment that imposes 

any regulation as listed in Section 65850; and, 

 

WHEREAS, notice of the public hearing on the Zoning Ordinance Amendment was published in 

the Waterford News, a newspaper of general circulation, on May 14, 2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has reviewed the Zoning Ordinance Amendment and 

conducted a duly noticed public hearing on May 27, 2014. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Waterford Planning Commission that it 

recommends that the City Council approve the Zoning Ordinance Amendment by Ordinance 

2014-02 as follows: 

 

1. Pursuant to California Government Code Section 65854, the recommendation to City 

Council shall include the relationship to the applicable general or specific plan: 



 

 

a. The proposed action will provide regulations and a process for which outdoor 

eating areas may serve alcoholic beverages.  This may result in more businesses 

investing in outdoor eating areas as a whole.  This compliments the 

implementation action UD-3f: Encourage a lively streetscape environment with 

buildings and activities oriented to the street and sidewalk areas at ground level.  

Floor treatments are encouraged to the pedestrian, including sidewalk cafes.  This 

Ordinance Amendment allows for more opportunities for outdoor eating areas. 

b. UD-7g promotes set-back areas for commercial buildings where outdoor uses can 

be conducted.  Such uses may include community promotions and special events, 

outdoor dining, outdoor bazaars, and sales of new goods and handcrafted items.  

The proposed Ordinance Amendment will provide for more opportunities for 

outdoor dining and will complement this implementation action of the City’s 

Vision 2025 General Plan. 

 

2. That the Waterford Municipal Code is hereby amended by Ordinance 2014-02, amending 

Section 17.40.290(F): Outdoor Eating Area Performance Standards of Title 17: Zoning, 

Chapter 17.40: General Regulations. 

 

3. That based on findings set forth in this Resolution, the evidence in the City Staff Report, 

and such other evidence received at the public hearings on this matter before the Planning 

Commission, the Planning Commission recommends the approval of the Zoning 

Ordinance Amendment as set forth by Ordinance 2014-02. 

 

4. Constitutionality, severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or 

word of this resolution is for any reason held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 

unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 

remaining portions of the resolution.  The Planning Commission of the City of Waterford 

hereby declares that it would have passed this resolution and each section, subsection, 

sentence, clause, phrase, and word thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more 

section(s), subsection(s), sentence(s), clause(s), phrase(s), or word(s) be declared invalid. 

 

5. The proposed Ordinance Amendment is categorically exempt from the provisions of the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) per State CEQA Guidelines Section 

15305 (Class 5 – Minor Alterations to Land Use Limitations). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

The foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of 

Waterford, Stanislaus County, at a meeting held on May 27, 2014, moved for adoption by 

Commissioner ________ and duly seconded by Commissioner _________; passed by the 

following roll call vote: 

 

 

AYES:     

NOES:   

ABSENT:   

ABSTAIN: 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________  _____________________________ 

Chris Esther, Chairman    Carla Jauregui, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” – Zoning Ordinance Amendment 2014-02 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Zoning Ordinance Amendment 2014-02 



Exhibit A 

Zoning Ordinance Amendment 2014-02 

 

Waterford Municipal Code: 17.40.290  

F.     Outdoor Eating Area Performance Standards. 

1.     Accessory eating areas are subject to the general design standards applicable to the building or 
district within which the activity is conducted, and must include an approved encroachment permit 
signed by the Public Works Director where the eating area is proposed on a city sidewalk, right-of-way 
or on public property.  These outdoor dining regulations are intended to ensure public safety and 
welfare, protect public property, and promote the attractive use of public right-of-way, by regulating the 
location, height, design and use of outdoor dining barriers and fixtures.  

 

2.     The outdoor eating area, including furniture, must be arranged or situated so that is does not 
create a hazard to pedestrians or encroach on a required building exit, vehicle travel lane, driveway, or 
any public street or unless that is not formally closed by city authority. 

3.     The outdoor eating area shall provide a minimum of four (4) feet of pedestrian clearance when 
located on any sidewalk or other public right-of-way, and set back a minimum of six (6) feet from any 
crosswalk or ramp. A minimum of four (4) feet of clearance must be provided around any tree, 
newsstand, bike rack, bench, planter, trash receptacle, etc.  

4.     The outdoor eating area must be maintained in a manner such that it does not create an unsightly 
appearance, including how the furniture is organized and secured when the business establishment is 
closed.  The outdoor dining area must remain clear of litter, and unattended food scraps, soiled utensils 
and dishes at all times.  The permittee shall maintain the tables and chairs in the permitted outdoor 
dining area in a clean condition at all times.  No debris shall be swept, washed or blown into the 
sidewalk, gutter or street.  Adequate lighting may be required of the operator to ensure safety of 
customers and pedestrians, and must be maintained in good working order.   

5.     Any aAlcoholic beverages are is not allowed to be served or consumed within any outdoor eating 
area, unless the following regulations are met:. 

(a) State Licensure.  The outdoor dining area operation must be duly licensed by the State 
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control, and the City of Waterford requirements and 
restrictions for the service of alcoholic beverages in outdoor dining areas shall not be less than 
those required by the State Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control.  

(b) Indemnification.  The permittee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City, its officials, 
officers, agents and employees from any and all claims, causes of action, losses, injuries or 
damages arising directly or indirectly from the negligent acts, errors or omissions of the permit 
holder, its officers, agents, employees or anyone rendering services on its behalf.  This 
indemnity shall include all reasonable costs and attorney's fees incurred in defending any action 
covered by this section. 



(c) Barriers. The outdoor dining area must be clearly and physically separated from pedestrian 
traffic, and exits shall be designated in the encroachment permit, and clearly marked at the exit 
locations.   

1. Barrier Requirements.  Barriers shall maintain a minimum height of forty-two (42) inches 
and a maximum height of forty-eight (48) inches.  Sectional fencing must be constructed 
of decorative metal (aluminum, steel or iron) and must be of a dark color (either painted 
or stained) to compliment downtown furnishings.  Rope or chain barriers are permitted 
with a minimum diameter of one inch. Vertical support posts must be constructed of 
wood or metal. The spacing, if any, between barriers, railings, or fences, must prevent 
pedestrian traffic through them. 

2. Barrier Removal Deposit.  A removal deposit shall be submitted at the time of 
encroachment permit approval where a fixed barrier is proposed and be subject to the 
determination of the Public Works Director.  A removal deposit is not required for 
portable barriers.  If, at the time of cessation of outdoor dining use and/or revocation of 
the encroachment permit, the barrier is removed by the business owner or other 
responsible party, any removal deposit will be refunded.   

3. Removal of Barriers and Fixtures.  Permittees shall have thirty (30) days from the date of 
business closure to remove all barriers and other outdoor dining fixtures.  Permittees 
shall notify the City for final inspection once all barriers and fixtures are removed.  
Failure to remove barriers within the thirty (30) day period may result in the City taking 
action to remove the barriers and fixtures. Expenses incurred shall be billable to the 
permit holder and/or deducted from the deposit. 

(d) Written Notice.  The service of alcoholic beverages shall be restricted solely to on-premise 
consumption by customers within the outdoor dining area.  The business operator shall post a 
written notice to customers that drinking or carrying an open container of alcohol is prohibited 
outside the outdoor dining area. 

(e) Outdoor dining areas shall not be used primarily for alcoholic beverage consumption, and the 
opportunity to order food from the dining establishment's menu shall be made available at all 
times when alcohol is served. 

(f) Police Department approval is required for alcohol sales after midnight in outdoor dining areas. 

6.   Denial of Encroachment.  Upon denial of an encroachment permit by the Public Works Director, an 
applicant may, within fifteen (15) calendar days following notification of such denial, file a notice of 
appeal to the City Manager, who shall then hear all appeals concerning the application for 
encroachment, and which decision regarding the appeal shall be final.  

 

 

 

 




























